
 
 

 
BY ELECTRONIC DELIVERY TO: Board.Secretary@bpu.nj.gov 
 
January 13th, 2023 
 
Ms. Carmen Diaz 
Acting Secretary of the Board 
New Jersey Board of Public Utilities 
44 South Clinton Avenue, 1st Floor 
PO Box 350 
Trenton, NJ 08625 – 0350 
 
RE: In the Matter of the Opening of New Jersey’s Third Solicitation for Offshore Wind 
Renewable Energy Certificates (OREC), Docket No. QO22080481 
 
Dear Acting Secretary Diaz, 

In response to the Draft Solicitation Guidance Document issued by the New Jersey Board of 
Public Utilities (“BPU”) on November 30, 2022, Vineyard Offshore LLC (“Vineyard Offshore”) is 
pleased to provide the enclosed comments and requests for clarification. 

Vineyard Offshore developed Vineyard Wind 1 (Lease Area OCS-A 501), the nation’s first 
commercial-scale offshore wind project. Vineyard Offshore is also leading the development of Lease 
Area OCS-A 522 (known as Vineyard Northeast) and Lease Area OCS-A 544 (known as Vineyard Mid-
Atlantic). Combined with the 50% ownership of the Vineyard Wind 1 project, Vineyard Offshore has 
the potential to develop more than 5 gigawatts of clean, renewable, and cost-effective energy on the 
US East Coast.  

We applaud the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (the “BPU”) and the Murphy 
Administration’s offshore wind energy ambitions as demonstrated in Executive Order (“EO”) 8, EO 
92, and, most recently, EO 307, and their proactive action in providing the Solicitation Guidance 
Document (“SGD”) in advance of New Jersey’s Third Solicitation for Offshore Wind Renewable Energy 
Certificates (“OREC”).  

This document discusses priority topics pivotal to the New Jersey BPU’s maximization of 
competitive OREC pricing and minimized ratepayer costs, including further understanding of how 
the suggested State Agreement Approach affects integration of future project proposals. 

Vineyard Offshore respectfully requests that the BPU review and consider the comments and 
requests for clarification, included below, as the BPU advances the finalization of the SGD for the 
State’s Third Solicitation for Offshore Wind Renewable Energy Certificates.  

Respectfully submitted, 
 
Ben Koffel 
Chief Commercial Officer 

mailto:Board.Secretary@bpu.nj.gov
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Application Requirements 

 
 Minimum Required Nameplate Capacity: To ensure maximum competition and synergize 

the lowest possible OREC price bids for the New Jersey Third Offshore Wind Solicitation, 
Vineyard Offshore urges the BPU to consider revising the minimum nameplate capacity 
requirement to allow for project offerings of less than 1,200 MW. 
 
Smaller projects can provide the BPU with maximum competitive OREC pricing, because they 
may be financed and built as part of a synergized project construction portfolio. Portfolios 
can be financially optimized based on a project’s offshore lease area, turbine size, 
transmission capacity, etc. This synergy with a larger construction portfolio creates 
economies of scale in build-out, allowing bidders to offer lower OREC pricing and NJ 
ratepayers to benefit from projects awarded in previous offtake procurements. Restrictions 
on project capacity bid size will impede offshore wind developers’ ability to size projects in a 
manner that results in the lowest possible OREC price through efficient portfolio construction 
and financing. 
 

 Alternative Transmission Solutions: To support the BPU’s desire to retain flexibility in this 
solicitation and to further ensure and facilitate the cost-effective procurement of 7,500 MW 
of offshore wind by 2035 and 11,000 MW of offshore wind by 2040, Vineyard Offshore 
encourages the BPU to allow for alternative proposals that utilize other points of 
interconnection and the use of high voltage alternating current (“HVAC”) technology. 
Allowing applicants to submit additional Projects under 1,200 MW HVAC utilizing alternative 
points of interconnection would enable applicants to maximize the cost-effective integration 
of the available incremental capacity in their lease area(s) and the available injection capacity 
at existing substations accessible by HVAC export cables, while offering the BPU an 
opportunity to mitigate the risks associated with depending solely on HVDC technology and 
the on-time availability of the full interconnection capacity of the Larrabee Tri-Collector 
Solution (“LTCS”).  
 
While an HVDC system with a single circuit can allow for cost-effective long-distance 
transmission for projects of 1,200 MW to 1,400 MW, HVDC offshore and onshore substations 
are up to 2x the cost of HVAC systems for similar project sizes. And, they have a 5 to 7-year 
lead time from engineering, procurement, construction, and installation (“EPCI”) contract 
signature to the date on which the HVDC system is fully commissioned. In comparison, HVAC 
systems have a 2 to 3-year lead time. With increasing demand for HVDC systems globally, 
there is a risk that not all of the up-to-4,000 MW that the BPU may procure in this solicitation 
could be constructed cost-effectively and/or on time due to supply chain and market 
conditions. In addition, HVAC systems can integrate smaller offshore wind projects of 400-
500 MW on a single circuit over shorter distances of up to 100-120 kilometers more cost 
effectively than HVDC. Finally, given distances from the New Jersey and New York Bight lease 
areas to potential points of interconnection in New Jersey, there are opportunities to utilize 
available injection capacities at existing substations with smaller project sizes utilizing HVAC 
technology that could optimize available lease area and grid injection capacity to minimize 
costs to ratepayers. 
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Evaluation Criteria 
 
 New Jersey’s Second Solicitation for Offshore Wind Renewable Energy Certificates attributed 

a 50% evaluation weighting to “OREC Purchase Price and Ratepayer Impacts,” whereas the 
SGD for the State’s Third Solicitation for Offshore Wind Renewable Energy Certificates 
attributes a 70% evaluation weighting to “OREC Purchase Price and Ratepayer Impacts.” Can 
the BPU please provide additional information regarding the factors contributing to this 
redistribution of the evaluation criteria scoring? 
 

 Can the BPU please provide further information on how the 30% weighting assigned to non-
price considerations will be allocated between economic impacts and environmental and 
fisheries impacts? Potential applicants would benefit from a better understanding of the 
BPU’s bid evaluation process and the relative importance assigned to these two sets of 
evaluation criteria. Furthermore, within the economic impact category, Vineyard Offshore 
encourages the BPU to specify whether certain types of economic benefits (e.g., long-term 
jobs, investments in manufacturing, purchase of primary and secondary components in New 
Jersey, etc.) would be assigned heavier weighting.  
 

Prebuild Infrastructure Requirements 
 
 Given the short amount of time between the solicitation Issue Date and the Submission 

deadlines for a detailed permitting and engineering design, and given the absence of a 
prescribed onshore cable route, can the BPU please confirm that the requirements listed in 
Attachment 11 under the heading “Interconnection Plan Requirements Related to the 
Prebuild Infrastructure” are to be considered preliminary “concept” stage design, and not 
detailed engineering design, and/or otherwise provide additional guidance to potential 
applicants on the level and maturity of design expected for the Prebuild Infrastructure?  
 

 Can the BPU please confirm if the Applicants can submit multiple Prebuild OREC Purchase 
Price proposals to reflect a variety of Prebuild Infrastructure options. These options may 
include an alternative route or duct banks designed for higher voltage cables or higher 
production capacities. 

 
 Given the absence of a prescribed route between the Sea Girt landing and the LTCS, please 

clarify how bidders should estimate the cost of transmission lines in bids. The cost of an 
onshore transmission cable is driven in large part by the length of the transmission route. 
Given that each Applicant will be required to submit each Project with and without the option 
for the construction of the Prebuild Infrastructure, the Project without the Prebuild 
Infrastructure will be dependent upon another Applicant’s onshore route and Prebuild 
Infrastructure design. This dependency has implications for the capital cost assumptions 
associated with the onshore cable supply and installation, as well as the operational 
expenditures associated with the maintenance of the onshore cable.  



 
 

Vineyard Offshore Response to Docket No. QO22080481 Solicitation Guidance Document 
January 13th, 2023 
 

4 
 

 
 Can the BPU please provide more guidance on the suggested potential “co-ownership” 

structure of the Prebuild Infrastructure post-commercial operation date (COD), as referenced 
in the SGD? Furthermore, can the BPU please clarify how they would expect entities to be 
responsible for the maintenance, taxes, and other costs associated with the Prebuild 
Infrastructure? If the owner(s) of the Prebuild Infrastructure either fail(s) to maintain the 
Prebuild Infrastructure, or otherwise damages another project’s cable during maintenance 
activities, how does the BPU envision addressing this risk?  

 
 Can the BPU please confirm that a Qualified Project that is utilizing the Prebuild 

Infrastructure constructed and owned by another Qualified Project will be able to continue 
to utilize the Prebuild Infrastructure beyond the OREC contract tenor for the entire useful life 
of the Project of up to 35 years, and that the Prebuild Infrastructure will have a 35-year design 
life?  

 
 Can the BPU please confirm if there is a minimum capacity that the BPU will consider for any 

one of the four circuits interconnecting into the LTCS utilizing the Prebuild Infrastructure? 
 
Final SAA Plans 
 
 Can the BPU please clarify if and when Applicants can expect to receive access to the full 

details included in the LTCS proposal submitted to the BPU per the SAA Order? 
 

Solicitation Schedule 
 
 To ensure maximum competition for the New Jersey Third Offshore Wind Solicitation and 

lowest possible ratepayer costs, Vineyard Offshore urges the BPU to select a final 
solicitation schedule that will 1) ensure the time between the date of issuance of the final 
Solicitation Guidance Document and the application submission deadline is sufficient to 
allow for the development of mature, robust, comprehensive proposals, including the time 
necessary for suppliers and developers to underwrite potential substantial investments in 
supply chain facilities, and 2) ensure the opportunity for bidders potentially participating in 
the New York Energy Research and Development Authority’s (NYSERDA) ORECRFP22-1 
offshore wind solicitation to also participate in the upcoming Third New Jersey Offshore 
Wind Solicitation. 

Current scheduling of New Jersey’s Third Offshore Wind Solicitation appears to reduce the 
opportunities for maximum competition and economic development from potential bidders 
for New Jersey. Bidders who submit proposals under NYSERDA’s January 26, 2023 
ORECRFP22-1 deadline (of which four of the New York Bight Leaseholders have filed Notices 
of Intent to do so) will likely be unnecessarily and preemptively disqualified from submitting 
bids under New Jersey’s Third Offshore Wind Solicitation. 

NYSERDA ORECRFP22-1 requires that bids are held firm and valid for 180 days from January 
26, 2023 and are restricted from submitting any portion of the lease area and/or capacity bid 
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into ORECRFP22-1 into any other solicitation. These projects may not formally withdraw 
their bids from further considerations until after NYSERDA’s award announcement, expected 
no earlier than April 2023.  

At a minimum, Vineyard Offshore urges the BPU to ensure the deadline for submitting 
applications under New Jersey’s Third Offshore Wind Solicitation be after April 2023. In 
addition, in order to ensure that bidders have sufficient time to prepare the most mature, 
robust, comprehensive, and competitive proposals to submit under New Jersey’s Third 
Offshore Wind Solicitation, Vineyard Offshore urges the BPU to consider a final application 
submission deadline to be the later between July 31, 2023 and 90 days from NYSERDA’s 
public award announcement under ORECRFP22-1.  

 


